


DOWNERS GROVE LIQUOR COMMISSION 
BETTY CHEEVER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

850 CURTISS STREET 

Thursday, September 4, 2025 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Johnson called the September 4, 2025 Liquor Commission meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

II. ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

STAFF: 

OTHERS: 

Ms. Kastory, Mr. Mehta, Ms. Saucedo, Chairman Johnson 

Mr. Dietrich, Mr. Fenton, Mr. Shah 

Carol Kuchynka, Liaison to the Liquor Commission, Brandan Rissman, Assistant Village 
Attorney 

Sophia Papageorge-Karvelas, Nonda Karvelas, Shannon Huddleston, Eddie Nahlawi, Julie 
Notaro, Court Reporter 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chairman Johnson asked for approval of the minutes for the August 7, 2025 Liquor Commission meeting 
and asked members if there were any corrections, changes or additions. 

Hearing no additional changes, corrections or additions, the August 7, 2025 minutes of the Liquor 
Commission meeting were approved as written. 

Chairman Johnson reminded those present that this evening's meeting was being recorded on 
Village-owned equipment. Staff was present to keep minutes for the record. 

IV. APPLICATION FOR LIQUOR LICENSE 

Chairman Johnson made the following statements: 

"The next order of business is to conduct a public hearing for a liquor license application. For the benefit 
of all present, I would like to state that this Commission does not determine the granting or denial of the 
issuance of any license. We may, at the end of each hearing, make a finding or recommendation with 
respect to the application. If necessary, the Commission may adjourn a hearing to a later date in order to 
have benefit of further infon11ation." 

"At the conclusion of the hearing, the Commission will determine any recommendations it wishes to 
make to the Liquor Commissioner". 

"The Liquor Commissioner, who is the Mayor of Downers Grove, will, pursuant to Section 3-12 of the 
Ordinance, render decisions regarding issuance of available licenses." 

"Hearings by this Commission are held according to the following format: 1) reading of information 
pertinent to the application, 2) comments from the applicant, 3) discussion by the Commission, 4) 
comments from staff, 5) comments from the public, and 6) motion and finding by the Commission." 



Bryan's America11 Grill - 2009 Ogde11 

Chairman Johnson stated that the next order of business was an application from Karv Corp., LLC d/b/a 
Bryan's American Grill located at 2009 Ogden Avenue. He stated that the applicant is seeking a Class • 
"R-1 ", full alcohol, on-premise consumption liquor license and a Class "O" outdoor liquor license. · 

Chairman .Johnson asked that any individual(s) representing the applicant step forward and be seated. He 
asked that any individual(s) giving testimony, state and spell their name for the record, indicate their 
affiliation with the establishment and be sworn in by the court reporter. 

Ms. Sophia Papageorge-Karvelas, Mr. Nonda Karvelas and Ms. Shannon Huddleston were sworn in by 
the court reporter. 

Chairman Johnson asked them to explain their request for liquor license. 

Ms. Papageorge-Karvelas stated that they are seeking a license for an existing restaurant that has been 
operating for l O years. She stated that he and her husband were interested in buying the business and 
continuing to run it with food and alcohol service. 

Chairman Johnson stated that based upon the materials presented they are renting with an option to buy 
the building. Ms. Papageorge-Karvelas replied yes. 

Chairman Johnson stated that any decision by the Mayor granting a liquor license shall specifically 
confirm to an expected date of occupancy. He added that no decision shall be valid for more than ninety 
(90) days after the expected occupancy date. He stated that extensions may be granted or a new 
application may be required in accordance with Section 3.12(e)(2) of the Downers Municipal Code. 

Chairman Johnson asked the expected date of occupancy. Mr. Karvelas replied as soon as possible. 

Chairman Johnson asked for questions from the Commission. 

Ms. Saucedo noted that two employee BASSET Certifications were expired. She asked if they were still 
with the restaurant. Ms. Kastory noted three were expired. She stated that Kimberly, Shannon, and 
Carries expired earlier this year. Ms. Huddleston stated that she took hers a year early and was not 
expired. She noted that they will have them re-certified by the weekend. She advised that Shari, 
another employee listed, is no longer with the restaurant. Ms. Kuchynka advised that the certifications 
must be completed before they can do any further serving. 

Ms. Kastory stated that the manual read that employees should recognize signs of intoxication, however 
there is no mention or examples to support that. She asked if they go over that material in their meetings. 
Ms. Papageorge-Karvelas stated that they will update that in the handbook when they take over and 
communicate that to staff. 

Ms. Papageorge-Karvelas stated that Shannon will be responsible for training staff. Ms. Papageorge­
Karvelas stated that as a health care professional she is familiar with the signs of intoxication. She stated 
that they will stress that matter with employees. 

Mr. Mehta asked Ms. Papageorge-Karvelas if she was currently working at the restaurant. Ms. 
Papageorge-Karvelas replied no. 

Mr. Mehta stated he was trying to understand what would change with their takeover. Mr. Karvelas 



replied that for the time being, nothing will be changing for the next few years after they buy the property. 
He stated that he has approval from the current owner to utilize the Bryan's name for six months. He 
stated that they will take that time to get to know the clientele. 

Ms. Papageorge-Karvelas stated that the menu is extensive. She stated that she would like to cut that and 
offer shareable meals and small plates. She stated that should would like to bring in healthier options 
and upgrade the kids menu. She stated that their priority is to create a seed-oil free restaurant. She 
stated that olive oil in lieu of inflammatory oils will be used for cooking purposes. She stated that no 
restaurants in the area offer seed-free oils and noted that certain oils affect our health. 

Ms. Papageorge-Karvelas stated that they would like to offer more non-alcoholic options such as 
"mocktails". She stated that alcohol is a toxin, which is being consumed less and less. She stated that 
she would like to add organic beer and hard liquor and more nutritional changes to the establishment. 

Mr. Mehta asked Ms. Huddleston if she currently works at the restaurant. Ms. Huddleston replied yes. 
She stated that she works under Bryan, who is the current owner/manager. She stated that she is in charge 
when he is not at the restaurant. She stated that she has been working for Bryan's for nine years. She 
stated that she worked at DuPage Inn for seventeen years and managed that as well. 

Chairman Johnson asked the Karvelas' if they will be serving at the establishment in the future. Mr. & 
Mrs. Karvelas replied yes. 

Chairman Johnson asked the Karvelas' if they had liquor handling experience. Mr. Karvelas replied that 
they owned a bar and grill in Mount Prospect for six years. He stated that a bar at the time they got 
engaged was not conducive to family life, so they sold it. Mr. Karvelas stated that their kids to go local 
schools and they live in Orchardbrook. He stated that the restaurant is close. Ms. Papageorge-Karvelas 
replied that her family has been in the restaurant business for decades. She stated that her uncle and 
father have had Papa Spiro's in Oak Park. She stated that she has been in and out of the field for many 
years and is familiar with serving, food and alcohol handling. 

Ms. Papageorge-Karvelas stated that she is a certified bartender. She stated that when working for 
Emerson's Ale House she wanted to be familiar with every aspect of the business and was certified in 
mixology. She stated this experience will be beneficial for her in operating Bryan's. 

Chainnan Johnson reminded Ms. Papageorge-Karvelas before she handles any drinks, she will need to 
obtain the BASSET Certifications. Ms. Papageorge-Karvelas replied that they use to be certified when 
working at Emerson's but noted that the certifications will need to be renewed. 

Chairman Johnson noted Ms. Huddleston's extensive background. He asked Ms. Huddleston what her 
role is now. Ms. Huddleston replied that she is head bartender. 

Chairman Johnson stated that they included the Bryan's manual with their materials. He asked what, if 
anything, would change with the materials of the previous owner. Mr. Karvelas noted that they made 
some updates and changes to the manual. He stated that they will not accept the vertical id, which was 
not in the packet from the previous owner. He stated that a few inconsistencies in the packet that were 
corrected. 

Mr. Karvelas noted that a change would be to include information on ID readers, which they intend to 
use. 

Chainnan Johnson asked Ms. Huddleston when the last quarterly staff meeting took place. Ms. 
Huddleston stated that there are only six employees at the establishment. She stated that they have all 
been bartending for 20+ years and very experienced. She stated that they communicate to each other 



when customers need to be cut off. She stated that they do not let patrons drink and drive, and they offer 
Uber rides. 

Chairman Johnson encouraged them to have refresher meetings more often with staff. 

Chainnan Johnson stated that there were six full time employees. Ms. Huddleston stated there was six 
total, with no more than two on staff. She stated that one works during the day. She stated that Bryan's 
is a very small place. She stated that a bartender and waitress are there at any given time. 

Chairman Johnson asked how many tables were in the restaurant. Mr. Karvelas replied sixteen, with six 
of them being two-tops. 

Chairman Johnson asked how many bar stools there were. Mr. Karvelas replied ten. 

Chairman Johnson stated that equates to about twenty-five patrons for two employees to monitor. He 
stated that there was some concern on how they will monitor the outdoor. He stated that the manual 
states that the manager on duty or their designee will be responsible for monitoring the patio. He stated 
that sounds like a lot. Ms. Papageorge-Karvelas stated that the patio seats four people. 

Chairman Johnson asked if the patio was a smoking area. Ms. Papageorge-Karvelas replied that patrons 
do not smoke out there and there are no-smoking signs because patrons do sit out there to eat. 

Mr. Karvelas noted their concern of not having enough people on staff. He felt that one person should 
not be there closing at night and felt that there will be more staff and busboys present. 

Ms. Papageorge-Karvelas stated that if there will be more employees to staff the patio when open. 

Ms. Papageorge-Karvelas stated that they have gone in several times to observe the operation. She felt 
that an increase of staff would be beneficial. 

Chainnan Johnson asked what the 5/10 rule of greeting on page 8 of the manual. Ms. Papageorge­
Karvelas replied when dealing with customers, meet, greet them, seat them, go over specials and get their 
names. Ms. Huddleston stated that staff is very personable. She stated that they are familiar with 90% 
of the patrons that come through the door. 

Mr. Karvelas stated that he went to DG North. He added that he sees his old class mates and families, 
co-workers and customers at the site. 

Chairman Johnson referred to page 9 of the manual where "any employee involved in serving a minor 
will be immediately terminated". He asked Ms. Huddleston if that has ever occurred while she worked at 
Bryan's. Ms. Huddleston replied no. She stated that did occur at DuPage Inn. 

Mr. Mehta asked that if they change the operation will they need to come back to the Commission. Ms. 
Kuchynka replied that in some cases, depending on their nature and complexity, the Mayor can approve 
changes administratively. Ms. Kuchynka advised the applicant that any renovations and/or changes to 
signage may require a permit from the Building Department. She stated that changes to the menu and 
name would need to be reported. She added that the Mayor might require the applicant to return to the 
Commission if there were any major changes to the establishment. 

Chairman Johnson asked if staff had any comments concerning the application. Ms. Kuchynka stated 
that factors affecting the finding or recommendation include update to the certificate of occupancy, 
updated emergency contact information, signed lease, dram shop insurance, annual fee, satisfactory 
background checks and updated employee certifications. 



Chainnan Johnson asked for comments from the public. There were none. 

Hearing the testimony given in this case, Chairman Johnson asked for a recommendation from the 
Commission concerning its finding of "qualified" or "not qualified" with respect to their request for a 
Class R-1 liquor license. 

MR. MEHTA MOVED TO FIND KARV CORP., LLC D/B/A BRYAN'S AMERICAN GRILL 
LOCATED AT 2009 OGDEN A VENUE QUALIFIED FOR A CLASS "R-1 ", FULL ALCOHOL, 
ON-PREMISE CONSUMPTION LIQUOR LICENSE. MS. KASTORY SECONDED. 

Aye: 

Nay: 

Abstain: 

Mr. Mehta, Ms. Kastory, Ms. Saucedo, Chairman Johnson 

None 

None 

MOTION CARRIED: 4:0:0 

Hearing the testimony given in this case, Chainnan Johnson asked for a recommendation from the 
Commission concerning its finding of "qualified" or "not qualified" with respect to their request for a 
Class O liquor license. 

MR. MEHTA MOVED TO FIND KARV CORP., LLC D/B/A BRYAN'S AMERICAN GRILL 
LOCATED AT 2009 OGDEN A VENUE QUALIFIED FOR A CLASS "0", OUTDOOR LIQUOR 
LICENSE. MS. KASTORY SECONDED. 

Aye: 

Nay: 

Abstain: 

Mr. Mehta, Ms. Kastory, Ms. Saucedo, Chairman Johnson 

None 

None 

MOTION CARRIED: 4:0:0 

V. APPLICATION FOR CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP 

Chairman Johnson made the following statements: 

"The next order of business is to conduct a public hearing concerning a change in ownership, at the 
request of the Liquor Commissioner. Section 3.17 of the Municipal Code provides that the addition of 
any shareholder owning directly or indirectly 20% or more, and/or the exchange of stock which results in 
a change in controlling ownership shall be deemed to constitute a change for which a new license shall be 
required." 

Fonda de Paula -1012 Curtiss 

Chairman Johnson stated that before us is Fonda DG, LLC d/b/a Fonda de Paula located at 1012 Curtiss 
Street. The applicant is seeking approval of a change in ownership for the Class "R-1 ", full alcohol, on­
premise consumption liquor license and a Class "O" outdoor liquor license. 

Chairman Johnson stated that the applicant previously appeared before the Downers Grove Liquor 
Commission on May I, 2025. He stated that licenses were subsequently issued by the Local Liquor 



Commissioner on June 1, 2025. 

Chairman Johnson asked any individuals in the audience who will represent Fonda de Paula, to step 
forward and be seated. He asked that any individuals giving testimony be sworn in by the Court 
Reporter. He asked that they state and spell your name for the record and indicate their affiliation with 
the establishment. 

Ms. Julie Notaro and Mr. Eddie Nahlawi were sworn in by the court reporter. Ms. Notaro introduced 
herself as the Managing Member of Fonda DG, LLC and Mr. Nahlawi himself as the liquor manager for 
Fond de Paula. 

Chairman Johnson asked them to explain the change in ownership and reason for the request. 

Mr. Nahlawi stated that the restaurant operation has not changed. He stated that he has known personally 
and has worked with Julie for 38 years. He stated that she is part of the Foodworks Hospitality Group. 
He stated that Julie is going to take the lead on this project. He stated that they are working on the menu, 
the chef will remain the same and they hope to open soon. 

Chairman Johnson asked Mr. Nahlawi if he will remain the liquor manager. Mr. Nahlawi replied yes. 

Chairman Johnson asked Mr. Nahlawi if he is a managing partner. Mr. Nahlawi replied yes. 

Chairman Johnson asked the anticipated date of occupancy. Mr. Nahlawi hoped to be open by the 16th of 
September. 

Chairman Johnson asked for questions from the Commission. 

Ms. Saucedo had no questions. 

Ms. Kastory had no questions. 

Mr. Mehta asked Ms. Notaro if she was coming in to be a partner. Ms. Notaro replied [yes] finally. 

Mr. Mehta asked if this was the only change. Mr. Nahlawi replied yes. 

Mr. Mehta commented on their great presentation at the original hearing. 

Chairman Johnson had no questions. 

Chairman Johnson asked if staff had any comments concerning the application. Ms. Kuchynka stated 
that factors affecting the finding or recommendation include background checks which should already be 
satisfied. 

Chairman Johnson asked for comments from the public. There were none. 

Hearing the testimony given in this case, Chairman Johnson asked for a recommendation from the 
Commission concerning its finding of "qualified" or "not qualified" with respect to the change in 
ownership with regard to their Class R-1 liquor license. 

MR. MEHTA MOVED TO FIND FONDA DG, LLC D/B/A FONDA DE PAULA LOCATED AT 
1012 CURTISS STREET QUALIFIED FOR A CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP FOR THE CLASS 
"R-1 ", FULL ALCOHOL, ON-PREMISE CONSUMPTION LIQUOR LICENSE ISSUED ON 
JUNE 1, 2025. MS. KASTORY SECONDED. 



Aye: 

Nay: 

Abstain: 

Mr. Mehta, Ms. Kastory, Ms. Saucedo, Chairman Johnson 

None 

None 

MOTION CARRIED: 4:0:0 

Hearing the testimony given in this case, Chairman Johnson asked for a recommendation from the 
Commission concerning its finding of "qualified" or "not qualified" with respect to the change in 
ownership with regard to their Class O liquor license. 

MR. MEHTA MOVED TO FIND QUALIFIED FOR A CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP FOR THE 
CLASS "0", OUTDOOR LIQUOR LICENSE ISSUED ON JUNE 1, 2025. MS. KASTORY 
SECONDED. 

Aye: 

Nay: 

Abstain: 

Mr. Mehta, Ms. Saucedo, Ms. Kastory, Chairman Johnson 

None 

None 

MOTION CARRIED: 4:0:0 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 

Chairman Johnson asked ifthere was any discussion, update from staff or comments from the 
Commission regarding any new business. 

Ms. Kuchynka did not have any applications on file and did not anticipate holding an October meeting. 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 

Chairman Johnson asked if there was any discussion, update from staff or comments from the 
Commission regarding any old business. 

Ms. Kuchynka referred to the August month end report. 

Ms. Kuchynka stated that she is in the process of liquor license renewal. She noted an issue with the 
licensing software which she hoped to have resolved tomorrow. She noted the deadline for renewal is 
Friday, October 3rd . She stated that current licenses expire October 31 st . 

Ms. Kuchynka noted that there are several special events occurring in September. She advised that 
Goldfinger would be holding an Oktoberfest in their parking lot and would be serving as a beer vendor for 
the Park District Flannel Fest in Fishel Park. She stated that the District #58 Oktoberfest was approved 
and will occur on the weekend of September 13th . 

Ms. Kuchynka advised that Brickhouse Tavern & Tap on Butterfield voluntarily closed at the end of 
August and forfeited their liquor license. 



VIII. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

There were none. 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

Concluding business for the evening, Chairman Johnson called for a motion to adjourn. Ms. Saucedo 
moved to adjourn the September 4, 2025 meeting. The meeting was adjourned by acclimation at 7:01 
p.m. 



VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE
REPORT FOR THE LIQUOR COMMISSION

FEBRUARY 5, 2025 AGENDA

SUBJECT: TYPE: SUBMITTED BY:

Licensee:  Halsted Street Deli
Holdings, LLC-3500 Lacey
D/B/A:  Halsted Street Deli Coffee
& Wine Bar
Address:  3500 Lacey Road

Application for Class R-2 liquor
license Carol Kuchynka

Liaison to the Liquor Commission

REQUEST
The applicant is requesting a Class R-2 liquor license for Halsted Street Deli Coffee & Wine Bar located at
3500 Lacey Road.  

NOTICE
The request has been filed in conformance with applicable procedural and public hearing requirements.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Officer(s): James Gondeck, Managing Member

Stockholder(s): James Gondeck - 100%

Manager: Mr. Jim Gondeck

Licensee: Halsted Street Deli Holdings, LLC-3500 Lacey d/b/a Halsted Street Deli Coffee & Wine Bar
3500 Lacey Road
Downers Grove, IL  60515

PROPERTY INFORMATION

EXISTING LAND USE: Commercial 
PROPERTY SIZE: (700 square feet)

ANALYSIS

Submittals
This report is based on the following documents, which are on file with the Legal Department:

1. Application for Liquor License
2. Lease
3. Menu
4. Liquor Handling Manual
5. Floor Plan



Project Description
The applicant is requesting a Class R-2 liquor license for the operation of a deli located at 3500 Lacey Road. 

Compliance with the liquor ordinance
The establishment is defined as:  

Restaurant. A place kept, used, maintained, advertised or held out to the public as a place with the service of
food and drink, and where meals are regularly served, without sleeping accommodations, and where adequate
provision is made for sanitary kitchen and dining room equipment and capacity and a sufficient number of
employees to prepare and serve food for its customers. It being the intent of this paragraph that the primary
business conducted on premises to be licensed as restaurants hereunder shall be the service of food and
drink. Food service shall be available at all times liquor sales are being conducted. Menus shall be on the
table, presented to each patron as they are seated or be posted in such a manner to be easily readable by the
patrons of the restaurant. Provided, the kitchen may not cease operating prior to one (1) hour before closing.
Bar/lounge seating shall be no more than twenty percent (20%) of the total seating provided for patrons of the
establishment.

License conditions

"R-2" Restaurant licenses shall authorize the retail sale of beer and wine for consumption on the licensed
premises and the retail sale of beer and wine for consumption off the licensed premises pursuant to DGMC
Section 3.33.6 herein, where the primary business is that of a restaurant, as defined herein.  Such licensees
may provide delivery service pursuant to DGMC Section 3.33.4.

Public Safety Requirements
Fire Prevention and Community Development Department will need to conduct a walkthrough of the facility.   A
Certificate of Occupancy is not required.  Health Department approval is required.  

Factors Affecting Finding or Recommendation
Insurance, annual fee, satisfactory background checks, employee certifications.

Recommendation 

Based upon testimony presented at the February 5, 2026  application hearing, if said application is consistent 
with the Liquor Code and meets the criteria of the classification, staff requests the following:

A recommendation from the Commission concerning its finding of "qualified" or "not qualified" with regard to 
their Class R-2 liquor license application, along with any conditions and/or restrictions with respect to this 
applicant.



downers.us 

CIVIC CENTER 

850 Curtiss St. 

Downers Grove, IL
60515-4782 

MAIN 630 434.:5500 

POLICE 630 434 3600 

FIRE DEPT 

Administratioo 

5420 Main SL 

Downers Grove, IL 

60515-4834 

630.434.5980 

PUBLIC WORKS 

5101 Walnut Ave. 

Downers Grove. IL
60515-4046 

630.434.5460 

January 13, 2026 

Mr. James Gondeck 
Halsted Street Deli Holdings, LLC-3500 Lacey 

RE: Application for Class R-2 Liquor License 
Halsted Street Deli Coffee & Wine Bar 
3500 Lacey Road, Downers Grove, IL 60515 

Dear Mr. Gondeck: 

The Liquor Commission of the Village of Downers Grove will meet on Thursday, 
February 5, 2026, at 6:30 p.m. in the Civic Center Betty Cheever Council Chambers 
located at 850 Curtiss Street, Downers Grove, illinois, to consider applications for liquor 
licenses. A public bearing will be held on your application as a part of this meeting. 

I encourage you to attend this public hearing at which time you will have an opportunity 
to comment in support of your application. In addition, the Liquor Commission will be 
particularly interested in examining your liquor handling manual and in hearing about 
your floor plan and training procedures as they relate to the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

You may withdraw your application at any time prior to the public hearing. 

If you have any questions, please contact me at (630) 434-5542. 

Carol uchynka 
Liaison o the Liquor Commission 

VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE 

a\Hlllstcd St Dclc\app-lug.nts 



I) Village of Downers Grove 

LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION 

Date: 12/3/20 

Application is hereby made to the Local Liquor Commissioner of the Village 

of Downers Grove for issuance of a Class R2 liquor license, pursuant ---
to the ordinances of the Village and laws of the State of Illinois. 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

1.1 .Applicant 

Name: Halsted Street Deli Holdings, LLC-3500 Lacey 

Phone 

1.2.Status 

0 lndividual(s) or Sole Proprietorship 

Q Corporation 

® Limited Liability Company 

Q Partnership 

Q Other (explain) - --~---- ----------
1.3. Liquor Manager 

Name: James Gondeck 

Phone: 



Driver's License Number: 

Social Securit Number (Last Four 

Date of Birth 

Place of Birth: 

2. PREMISES 

2.1. Doing Business As: Halsted Street Del j 

Address: 3500 Lacey Road, Downers Grove, IL 60515 

Phone: 84 7-27 4-9350 

2.2. Does Applicant beneficially own the premises for which a license is 

sought? Qves 

a. If yes, Applicant must attached proof of ownership. (i.e. deed) 

b. If Applicant is not the beneficial owner of the premises, does 

Applicant have a lease thereon for the full period for which the 

license is to be issued? QNo @ves 

If yes, 

i. A copy of lease must be attached; and, 

ii. Identify the owner or rental agent for the property: 

Name: Kore 3500 Lacey Owner, LLC 

Address: 9250 E Costilla Ave, Greenwood Village, CO 80112 

Phone: 303-779-8200 



2.3.Are the premises located within one hundred feet of any church, 

school, hospital, home for aged or indigent persons or for veterans, 

their spouses or children, or any military or naval stations? 

Qves 

2.4. State the anticipated date of occupancy. 12/03/2025 
- - ------ - -

3. CORPORATION/LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

This section must be completed by authorized agent of any corporate or 

limited liability company Applicant. If Applicant is a partnership, skip section 

3 and go to section 4. If Applicant is neither a corporation, limited liability 

company, nor a partnership, skip sections 3 and 4 and go to section 5. 

3.1. Applicant was incorporated or organized under the laws of the State 

of _____ on the ______ day of ___ _ 

A.O., ----

3.2. If Applicant was not incorporated or organized under the laws of the 

State of Illinois, is Applicant a foreign corporation or limited liability 

company authorized to transact business in the State of Illinois? 

QNo Qves 

3.3. Registered Agent: 

Name: James Gondeck 

Phone: 



3.4. Corporate and limited liability company Applicants must complete 

and attach Officers and Directors, and Ownership Interests forms. 

4. PARTNERSHIP 

This section must be completed by authorized agent of any partnership 

Applicant. If Applicant is not a partnership, skip to Section 5. 

4.1. Applicant was formed under the laws of the State of I Iii nois 
on the 17th day of November, A.O., 2025 

4.2. ls Applicant a limited partnership pursuant to the Illinois Revised 

Uniform Limited Partnership? ,®No Qves 

4.3. If Applicant was not formed under the laws of the State of Illinois, is 

Applicant a foreign partnership qualified under the Illinois Uniform 

Partnership Act or the Illinois Uniform Limited Partnership Act, as now 

or hereafter amended, to transact business in the State of Illinois? 

Qves 

4.4. Registered Agent: ONot Applicable 

Name: James Gondeck 

Phone: 

4.5. General Partner: □Not Applicable 



Note: if there is more than one general partner, include that general 

partner who is to be primarily responsible for operation of the 

licensed premises. 

Name: James Gondeck 

Phone: 

4.6. Managing Partner: □ Not Applicable 

Note: if there is more than one managing partner, include that 

managing partner who is to be primarily responsible for operation of 

the licensed premises. 

Name: James Gondeck 

Phone: 

4.7. Partnership Applicants must complete and attach Partnership forms. 

5. SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP 

Name: 

NOTE: Pursuant to 235 ILCS 5/6-2 (1) Sole proprietor must be resident of 

the Village in which the premises covered by the license is located. 

Pursuant to 235 ILCS 5/6-2 (3) Sole proprietor must be a citizen of the 

United States. 



Skip to Section 6. 

6. QUALIFICATIONS 

6.1. Has any liquor license issued to the applicant, the liquor manager, or 

any person or entity listed on Officers and Directors, Ownership 

Interests, or Partnership forms ever been fined, revoked or 

suspended? 

.@No 

Q Yes, please identify the following: 

a. Jurisdiction revoking or suspending license: ---------
b. Date of revocation or suspension: ------------
c. Reason given by revoking jurisdiction for revocation or suspension: 

d. Additional explanatory information, if desired: _ _____ _ 

6.2. Has Applicant, the liquor manager, or any person or entity listed on 

the Officers and Directors, Ownership Interests, or Partnership forms 

ever been convicted of violating any Federal or State law concerning 

the manufacture, possession or sale of alcoholic liquor, or forfeited 

their bond for failure to appear in court to answer charges for any 

such violation? 

.@No 

Q Yes, please identify the following: 



a. Jurisdiction revoking or suspending license: ---------
b. Date of revocation or suspension: ------------
(. Reason given by revoking jurisdiction for revocation or suspension: 

d. Additional explanatory information, if desired: ______ _ 

6.3. Has Applicant, the liquor manager, or any person or entity listed on 

the Officers and Directors, Ownership Interests, or Partnership forms, 

ever been convicted of a felony under Federal or State law? 

@No 

Q Yes, please identify the following: 

a. Jurisdiction revoking or suspending license: ---------
b. Date of revocation or suspension: ------------
(. Reason given by revoking jurisdiction for revocation or suspension: 

d. Additional explanatory information, if desired: ______ _ 

6.4. ls Applicant the beneficial owner of the business to be operated? 

.@ves QNo 

6.5. Has Applicant, the liquor manager, or any person or entity listed on 

the Officers and Directors, Ownership Interests, or Partnership forms, 



ever been convicted of a gambling offense in violation of Sections 28-

1 (a)(3) through (a)(10), or Section 28-3, of the Illinois Criminal Code 

(ILL. REV. STAT., ch. 38), as heretofore or hereafter amended. 

@No 

Q Yes, please identify the following: 

a. Jurisdiction revoking or suspending license: ---------
b. Date of revocation or suspension: ------------
(. Reason given by revoking jurisdiction for revocation or suspension: 

d. Additional explanatory information, if desired: ______ _ 

6.6. Has Applicant, the liquor manager, or any person or entity listed on 

the Officers and Directors, Ownership Interests, or Partnership forms, 

been issued a federal wagering stamp by the federal government for 

the current tax period? 

@No 

Q Yes, please provide details. 



6.7. Has a federal wagering stamp has been issued by the federal 

government for the current tax period for the premises for which a 

license is sought? 

@No 

Q Yes, please provide details. 

6.8. ls applicant a citizen of the United States? 

Qves Q No @. Not Applicable- Corporation I LLC / 

Partnership 

6.9. ls applicant a resident of Downers Grove? 

Qves 

Partnership 

7. SUBMITTALS 

@ Not Applicable - Corporation I LLC/ 

7.1 . In addition to this application form the following are submitted as 

applicable: 

_Liquor Manager 

Officers and Directors 

_Ownership Interests 



_!_ Partnership 

✓ . 
_ Declaration 

Outdoor Sales Application 

Certifications 

_Articles of Incorporation or Organization (if applicable) 

_ Proof of Ownership of Premises (i.e. title report) 

_:_ Lease-If premises not beneficially owned by Applicant (for the full 

period for which the license is to be issued) 

~Floor Plan, as required for any premises to be licensed for sale of 

alcoholic liquor for consumption on the premises, drawn to scale, 

and with sufficient detail to depict types of seating, location of bars 

and other design features. 

_::_ Employee liquor handling training manual 

~Application fee 

Certificate of Insurance 
/ 

_ Menu (If applicable) 

_ Reduced Menu - after regular menu hours (If appl icable) 

7.2.Applicant understands and agrees that additional information and 

material may be required during the processing of this application 

related to applicant's qualifications, the information provided herein, 

including attachments, fingerprinting, and the class of license 

involved. Applicant agrees to provide such additional information and 

material and that failure to do so may delay the processing of this 

application or result in its denial. 



7.3. In the event Applicant is made aware that any information or 

document submitted as part of this application process is inaccurate 

or incomplete, Applicant agrees to immediately notify the Village and 

provide appropriate corrections. Applicant understands and agrees to 

provide such additional information and material, and that failure to 

do so may delay the processing of this application or result in its 

denial. 

THE UNDERSIGNED, BEING DULY SWORN, DOES STATE AS FOLLOWS: 

A. THAT THE UNDERSIGNED IS EMPOWERED TO PREPARE AND SIGN 

THIS APPLICATION ON BEHALF OF THE APPLICANT. 

8. THAT THE UNDERSIGNED HAS REVIEWED THIS APPLICATION, 

AND ALL ATTACHMENTS AND SUBMITTALS, AND THAT THE 

INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS TRUE AND ACCURATE. 



- -- - - -------=------------------ --------- -

Name of Corporation/Limited Liability Company/Partnership/Sole 

Proprietorship: 

Halsted Street Deli Holdings, LLC-3500 Lacey 

Applicant Signature: ~~~ 
Printed Name: James Gondeck 

Title: Managing Member 
Date: 12/3/25 



• Village of Downers Grove

MANAGER APPLICATION 

Name of License Holder: Halsted Street Deli Holdings, LLC-3500 Lacey 

Doing Business As: Halsted Street Deli

Phone: 

License Number: 

Manager Name:Jim Gondeck
---------------

Phone: 

Residence Address: 

Previous Residence (if less than one year at current residence): 

Date of Birth: 

Place of Birth: 

Social Security Number (Last Four): 

Citizenship: U.S.
--------------------

If naturalized, date/place of naturalization: 

Driver's License Number and State 

Number of hours per week of employment (minimum 35): 
-----



Experience 

Name and address (city, state) of any other related establishment in which 

you have been employed, position held, and dates of employment 

experience: 

Owner of Halsted Street Deli for 7 years 

I certify I have never been convicted of a felony, misdemeanor, or 

licensing ordinance violation. 

Signature of Manager: __ ~!i'--· --~~-~----------­

Date: 12/03/2025 



Village of Downers Grove 

PARTNERSHIP FORM 

Applicant: Halsted Street Deli Holdings, LLC-3500 Lacey 

By: Jim Gondeck 

Corporate Title: Managing Member 

Date: 12/03/2025 

The following is a listing of: 

a. All general partners of any Applicant partnership formed pursuant 

to the Illinois Uniform Partnership Act or similar statute of another 

state; or 

b. All general partners of any Applicant partnership formed or 

authorized to transact business as a foreign limited partnership, 

pursuant to the Illinois Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act, as 

now or hereafter amended; or, 

c. All limited partners owning, directly or indirectly, five (5%) or more of 

the aggregate limited partnership interest of any Applicant partnership 

formed or authorized to transact business as a foreign limited 

partnership, pursuant to the Illinois Revised Uniform Limited 

Partnership Act, as now or hereafter amended; or, 

d. All general or managing partners of any Applicant partnership which 

is not formed or authorized to transact business as a foreign limited 

partnership, pursuant to the Illinois Revised Uniform Limited 

Partnership Act, as now or hereafter amended. 



Note: include the person's full name, address and percent of ownership; 

use additional pages if necessary. 

Please attach a completed Background Check Waiver for each listed 

partner. 


































































	02.05.26
	Liquor Commission - Agenda
	I. Call to Order.
	II. Roll Call.
	III. Approval of Minutes.
	IV. Action Items/Public Hearings.
	V. New Business.
	VI. Old Business.
	VII. Public Comments.
	VIII.  Adjournment.


	09.04.25
	02.05.26 Halsted Deli App-Pkt_Redacted
	App-Pkt_Redacted
	REV menu & manual cover

	Staff Report

	02.05.26 Blume LC Packet



